IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MIGUEL HERNANDEZ,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CASE NO: 75,127 FILE SID J. WHITE AUG 14 1992 AUG 14 1992 CLERK, SUPREME COURL CLERK, SUPREME COURL

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

BERT WINKLER, ESQUIRE Attorney for the Appellant 250 Australian Avenue South Suite 1300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 (407)659-1960 FL BAR NO: 336076

E. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING

APPELLANT'S REQUESTED PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTION NUMBER THIRTEEN REGARDING THE JURY'S ROLE IN THE SENTENCING PROCESS..... 93 F. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANT'S REQUESTED PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTION REGARDING THE AGGRAVATING FACTOR OF THE MURDER HAVING BEEN COMMITTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING OR PREVENTING A LAWFUL THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING G. APPELLANT'S REQUESTED PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTION NUMBER THIRTY-ONE REGARDING APPELLANT'S PRIOR CONVICTION FOR VIOLENT Η. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING PHASE APPELLANT'S REQUESTED PENALTY JURY INSTRUCTION REGARDING APPELLANT'S CULPABILITY AND CULPABLE STATE OF MIND..... 95 POINT XXVI THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN PERMITTING EXTENSIVE TESTIMONY REGARDING APPELLANT'S PRIOR POINT XXVII THE DEATH SENTENCE MUST BE VACATED BECAUSE THE EVIDENCE DID NOT PROVE BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT THAT APPELLANT HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY INVOLVING THE USE OR POINT XXVIII THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN THE PENALTY PHASE IN PERMITTING THE STATE TO ELICIT TESTIMONY REGARDING AN EXHIBIT WHICH WAS NOT IN POINT XXIX THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING TESTIMONY FROM DEPOSITIONS DURING THE PENALTY PHASE.... 99 POINT XXX THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN PERMITTING IMPROPER ARGUMENT BY THE STATE DURING THE PENALTY PHASE.100 POINT XXXI THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN NOT INSTRUCTING THE JURY DURING THE PENALTY PHASE AS TO THE DEFINITION OF THE FELONIES BY WHICH IT WAS ALLEGED THAT AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES SET FORTH IN FLORIDA STATUTE 921.141(5)(d) WERE Certificate of Service.....103

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES

I,

.

<u>Anders v. California</u> , 386 U.S. 736 (1967)
Barfield v. State, 402 So.2d 377 (Fla. 1981) 54
<u>Bates v. State</u> , 465 So.2d 490 (Fla. 1985)
<u>Belcher v. State</u> , 550 So.2d 1185 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989) 45
<u>Bell v. State</u> , 589 So.2d 1374 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991) 45
<u>Boyd v. California</u> , 110 S.Ct. 1190, 1198 (1990) 86
<u>Brookings v. State</u> , 495 So.2d 135 (Fla. 1986) 54
<u>Brown v. State</u> , 437 So.2d 446 (Fla. 1983)
Brown v. State, 526 So.2d 903, 908, Florida 65
Brown v. Wainwright, 392 So.2d 1327 (Fla. 1981) 50, 62
<u>Bryant v. State</u> , 412 So.2d 347 (Fla. 1982) 43, 44
<u>Buenoano v. State</u> , 527 So.2d 194 (Fla. 1988) 96
<u>Burch v. Louisiana</u> , 441 U.S. 130 (1979)
Burch v. State, 343 So.2d 831 (Fla. 1977) 50
<u>Byrd v. State</u> , 574 So.2d 233 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991) 36
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 105 S.Ct. 1633 (1985) 93
<u>Callier v. State</u> , 523 So.2d 158 (Fla. 1988) 54
<u>Campbell v. State</u> , 571 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1990) 61, 64, 85, 86
<u>Carawan v. State</u> , 515 So.2d 161 (Fla. 1987) 44
<u>Caruthers v. State</u> , 465 So.2d 496 (Fla. 1985)
<u>Castro v. State</u> , 597 So.2d 259 (Fla. 1992) 87
<u>Cherry v. State</u> , 545 So.2d 184 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Christopher v. State</u> , 583 So.2d 642 (Fla. 1991) 48, 49
<u>Cochran v. State</u> , 547 So.2d 928, 933 (Fla. 1989) 85

Cole v. Arkansas, 333 U.S. 196, 68 S.Ct. 514, 92 L.Ed.644 (194802 <u>Dixon v. State</u>, 216 So.2d 85 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968) 36 DuBoise v. State, 520 So.2d 260 (Fla. 1988) 54, 63 Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 102 S.Ct. 869, 876-77, 71 L.Ed.2d 1 (1982) 92 <u>Elledge v. State</u>, 346 so.2d 998, 1001-02 (Fla. 1977) . . 80, 99 <u>Enmund v. Florida</u>, 458 U.S. 782, 102 S.Ct 3368, 73 L.Ed.2d 1140 (1982) 57-59, 95 . . . Espinosa v. Florida, - U.S. -, 112 S.Ct. 2996 (1992) 78 Estelle v. Williams, 425 U.S. 501, 96 S.Ct. 1691, 48 L.Ed.2d 126 (1976) 40 <u>Fead v. State</u>, 512 So.2d 176 (Fla. 1987) 65 Fitzpatrick v. State, 527 So.2d 809 (Fla. 1989) 49 Floyd v. State, 569 So.2d 1225 (Fla. 1990) . 80, 81, 86, 99, 100 Francis v. State, 579 So.2d 286 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1991) 35 Franklin v. State, 403 So.2d 975 (Fla. 1981) 101 65 <u>Fuente v. State</u>, 549 So.2d 652 (Fla. 1989) 54 Garcia v. State, 492 So.2d 360 (Fla. 1986), cert.denied, 479 U.S. 1022 (1986) 50 77 <u>Gosha v. State</u>, 534 So.2d 912 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1988) 35 <u>Griffin v. State</u>, 474 So.2d 777 (Fla. 1985) 73 Grossman v. State, 525 So.2d 833 (Fla. 1988), cert.denied, 489 U.S. 1071, 109 S.Ct. 1354, 103 L.Ed.2d 822 (1989) 48, 49 <u>Halliwell v. State</u>, 323 So.2d 557 (Fla. 1975) 54 <u>Harmon v. State</u>, 527 So.2d 182 (Fla. 1988) 54 Hawkins v. State, 436 So.2d 44 (Fla. 1983) 54

54 Herzog v. State, 439 So.2d 1372 (Fla. 1983) Hitchcock v. State, 16 F.L.W. S23, S26 (Fla. December 20, 1990)84 Hough v. State, 448 So.2d 628 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984) 45 66 Hoy v. State, 353 So.2d 826 (Fla. 1978) Jackson v. State, 575 So.2d 181 (Fla. 1991) . . . 38, 58, 59, 76 <u>Johnson v. Louisiana</u>, 406 U.S. 356 (1972) 84 50 68, Jones v. State, 569 So.2d 1234 (Fla. 1990) 84 <u>King v. State</u>, 397 So.2d 315 (Fla. 1980) 67.71 97 Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 856, 98 S.Ct. 2954, 57 L.Ed.2d 973 68, 92 (1978)73 Maggard v. State, 399 So.2d 973 (Fla. 1981) <u>Malloy v. State</u>, 382 So.2d 1190 (Fla 1979) 50, 54, 93 64 Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734 (Fla. 1986) <u>McCampbell v. State</u>, 421 So.2d 1072 (Fla. 1982) 54-56 McCleskey v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279, 304, 107 S.Ct. 1756, 1773, 95 L.Ed.2d 262 (1987) 69 Menendez v. State, 419 So.2d 312 (Fla. 1982) 66, 71, 94 Mikenas v. State, 367 So.2d 606 (Fla. 1978) 66 73 <u>Mills v. State</u>, 476 So.2d 172 (Fla. 1985) Morris v. State, 557 So.2d 27 (Fla. 1990) 63 Muehleman v. State, 503 So.2d 310 Fla., cert.denied, 484 U.S. 882, 108 S.Ct. 39, 98 L.Ed.2d 170 (1987) 49 Neary v. State, 384 So.2d 881 (Fla. 1980) 54 <u>Nibert v. State</u>, 574 So.2d 1059 (Fla. 1990) 51, 64, 86 Oats v. State, 446 So.2d 90 (Fla. 1984) 72, 73, 76, 94 Parker v. State, 546 So.2d 727 (Fla. 1989) 46

49 Patterson v. State, 513 So.2d 1257 (Fla. 1987) Peneda v. State, 571 So.2d 105 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1990) 35 Pentecost v. State, 545 So.2d 861 (Fla. 1989) 54, 70 Perry v State, 522 So.2d 817 (Fla. 1988) 65, 72, 76, 94 72 <u>Perry v. State</u>, 295 So.2d 170 (Fla. 1980) Presnell v. Georgia, 439 U.S. 14, 99 S.C. 235, 58 L.Ed.2d 207 101 (1978). . . Proffit v. Florida, 428 U.S. 250, 96 S.Ct. 2690, 49 L.Ed.2d 913 50, 84, 85 (1976)Provence v. State, 337 So.2d 783 (Fla. 1976), cert.denied, 431 U.S. 969, 97 S.Ct. 2929, 53 L.Ed.2d 1065 (1977) 72 85 <u>Randolph v. State</u>, 463 So.2d 186 (Fla. 1984) 76 <u>Rembert v. State</u>, 445 So.2d 337 (Fla. 1984) Richardson v. State, 246 So.2d 771 (Fla. 1971) 80 <u>Riley v. State</u>, 366 So.2d 19 (Fla. 1987) Robles v. State, 188 So.2d 789 (Fla. 1966) 101 Rogers v. State, 511 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1987) 61, 74 Schad v. Arizona, 111 S.Ct. 2491 (1991) 43 Scott v. Barfield, 202 So.2d 591 (Fla. 4th DCA 1967) 83 Scull v. State, 533 So.2d 1137 (Fla. 1988) 40, 78 Simmons v. State, 419 So.2d 316 (Fla. 1982) 66, 71, 75 Slater v. State, 316 So.2d 539 (Fla. 1975) 54, 70, 93 Smith v. State, 403 So.2d 933 (Fla. 1981) 54 80 Smith v. State, 500 So.2d 125, 126 (Fla. 1986) <u>Smith v. State</u>, 568 So.2d 965 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990) 36 56 54 Spivey v. Zant, 6061 F.2d 464, 467-472 (5th Cir. Unit B, 1981) 92 <u>State v. Dixon</u>, 283 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973), <u>cert.denied</u> 416 U.S. 943 (1984) State v. Jones, 377 So.2d 1163 (Fla. 1979) 101 <u>State v. Mischler</u>, 488 So.2d 523, 525 (Fla. 1986) 86 <u>State v. Overfelt</u>, 457 So.2d 1385 (Fla. 1984) 43 <u>State v. Rogers</u>, 511 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1987) 65, 78 64 Stewart v. State, 549 So.2d 171, 176 (Fla. 1989), cert.denied, -U.S. -, 110 S.Ct. 3294, 111 L.Ed.2d 802 (1990) 48 <u>Stokes v. State</u>, 403 So.2d 377 (Fla. 1981) 54 94 <u>Thompson v. State</u>, 456 So.2d 444 (Fla. 1984) 54-56 Trawick v. State, 473 So.2d 1235, 1240-1 (Fla. 1985), cert.denied, 476 U.S. 1143, 106 S.Ct. 2254, 90 L.Ed.2d 699 (1986) 79 Tyson v. Arizona, 481 U.S. 137, 107 S.Ct. 1676, 95 L.Ed.2d 127 (1987)57 49 VanRoyal v. State, 497 So.2d 625 (Fla. 1986) <u>Walton v. Arizona</u>, 110 S.Ct. 3047, 3057 (1990) 83, 86 <u>White v. State</u>, 532 So.2d 1207 (Miss.1988) 59 Whitfield v. State, 452 So.2d 548 (Fla. 1984) 38 Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862, 103 S.Ct. 2733, 2742, 77 L.Ed.2d 235 (1983) 59

STATUTES

Florida Statute	90.803(18)(e)	• •	• •	•	• •	٠	•	•	•	•	٠	•	•	• •	41
Florida Statute	90.804(2)(c)	• •	• •	•	• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	••	41
Florida Statute	921.141	• •	•••	•	••	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	78,	83
Florida Statute	921.141 (5)(d)) ar	nd	(f)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	• •	74

Florida	Statute	921.141(5)(b)	•	•	•	٠	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	97
Florida	Statute	921.141(5)(d)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	101
Florida	Statute	Section	90.701		•	• .	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	83
Florida	Statute	Section	775.08	32	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	48
Florida	Statute	Section	775.08	34	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	46
Florida	Statute	Section	775.08	37 (2)		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	٠	•	45
Florida ••••	Statute	Section	921.14	1(1) •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	80
Florida	Statute	Section	921.14	1(3)	(19	87)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	4	1 7,	49
Florida	Statute	Section	921.14	11(6)		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	61
Florida	Statute	Section	921.14	1(6)	(g	r)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	71

OTHER AUTHORITIES

Į,

Fla.Std.Jury Instr. (Crim. at 81)	
Fla.Std.Jury Instr. (Crim.) Penalty Proceedings - Capital Cases86	
Florida Constitution, Eighth Amendment . 40, 41, 43, 70, 78, 96	
Florida Constitution, Fifth Amendment . 40, 41, 43, 70, 78, 96	
Florida Constitution, Fourteenth Amendment 40	
Florida Constitution, Fourth Amendment 41	
Florida Constitution, Sixth Amendment	
Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.300(b)	
United States Constitution, Eighth Amendment 40	
United States Constitution, Fifth Amendment	
United States Constitution, Fourteenth Amendment	
United States Constitution, Fourth Amendment 41, 43	

I,

;

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Defendant in the trial court, Miguel Hernandez, will hereinafter be referred to as Appellant. The prosecution below is the state of Florida and will be referred to as the state or as Appellee.

References to the record on appeal will be referred to by use of the symbol R, followed by the appropriate page numbers. References to the supplemental record on appeal will be referred to by use of "Supp.R", followed by the appropriate page numbers.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Appellant was indicted for the crimes of first degree murder, burglary while armed with a firearm, burglary while armed with a firearm, grand theft, possession of a firearm during the commission of a felony and possession of a firearm by a convicted felon. The indictment was filed on July 25, 1988. (R-2223-5).

Appellant argued numerous motions to declare Florida Statutes 782.84 and 921.141 unconstitutional. All said motions were denied. (R-27-47).

Jury selection commenced on May 8, 1989.

A prospective juror, Mr. Kutlik, was questioned by the state and indicated that he would not be able to recommend the death penalty. Counsel for Appellant requested an opportunity to question Mr. Kutlik. The trial court denied that request, and excused Mr. Kutlik for cause at the state's request. (R-462-4).

The first witness called by the state was Detective Kenneth Mark Lewis of the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office. He responded to the Farmer's Market at approximately 3:23 AM on June 18, 1988. (R-695). He testified that the main entrance of the Farmer's Market had broken-out glass in one of its doors, and a Coke canister was located nearby. (R-699). He further testified that the point of entry for the burglary at the Farmer's Market was on top of the roof at a window. (R-701). Detective Lewis indicated that latent fingerprints were lifted from the point of entry. (R-710-3).

Detective Lewis also testified that the Gold Junction jewelry

store appeared to have been ransacked throughout the store, and some jewelry was found near the store on the floor. (R-726-7). He said, in his opinion as a crime scene analyst, some of the qunshots came from the quard and some of the gunshots came from inside the Gold Junction store. (R-746). He also testified that there were two bullet holes in a music shop curtain which appeared to have come from outside the music shop, perhaps from the Gold (R-747-9). Detective Lewis did not observe any Junction store. In Detective blood within the Gold Junction store. (R-753). Lewis' opinion, the point of exit from the burglary was at the door where the glass was broken out and the Coke canister was located directly outside the door. (R-762). He indicated that there was no evidence that any other store within the Farmer's Market had been burglarized at that time. The witness also (R-769). testified that a pattern in one of the mesh curtains was made by small BBs or lead pellets. (R-789-90). He also stated that this pattern of incoming shots to the Gold Junction began about forty inches off the ground and that the Gold Junction counter was approximately thirty-two inches off the ground. (R-790-1).

On cross-examination, Detective Lewis testified that the pattern of pellets fired by the guard into the Gold Junction would be at the level of approximately the knee area on the leg of a man who was six feet, three inches tall and standing on top of the counter in the store. (R-793-4). On re-direct examination, he indicated that no blood was found inside of the Gold Junction store. (R-795).

The next state witness was Gerald Styers, a forensic firearms examiner in the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office Crime Laboratory. Mr. Styers examined the crime scene at the Farmer's Market. He testified that he examined the east wall of the Chains by the Inch jewelry shop, which was a curtain that had at least four bullet holes in it. He also stated that there were approximately one hundred thirty-five shot pellet entry holes in the curtain . (R-815-6). Mr. Styers testified that the pattern of pellets or BBs in the mesh curtain was twenty-three inches wide by twenty inches high and consisted of approximately one hundred thirty-five pellet marks. (R-823-4).

Mr. Styers indicated that he found a .38 caliber projectile embedded in a two-by-four in the music shop of the Farmer's Market. He also found a fragment of a projectile on the floor in the music shop. He determined that both projectiles had been discharged from the same firearm. (R-882). He indicated that a bullet recovered in the waterbed shed had also been fired from the same firearm as the other two and that these three projectiles, or fragments thereof, represented three separate shots. (R-883-4). The witness indicated that he saw two bullet holes in the curtain of the music He also testified that the bullet identified as state's shop. exhibit 39 had been discharged from the same firearm as those three bullets previously mentioned (state's exhibits 42, 44 and 45). (R-887-8). Also, the witness indicated that the two large fragments of copper-jacket bullet material contained in state's exhibit 34 had been discharged from the same firearm as the other bullets.

(R-889). He testified that at the southwest corner of a store called Marion's, adjacent to a jewelry shop, there was a disturbance in a two-by-four indicating that it had been struck by a projectile.

Mr. Styers testified that he found evidence of three shots being fired into the music shop from a .38 special caliber or .357 Magnum firearm. (R-892). He further testified that five shots had come out of the Gold Junction jewelry store. (R-892). He also indicated that at least two projectiles and at least two of the (R-893). shot-type cartridges were fired into the Gold Junction. Mr. Styers indicated there were five shots which went outward from the Gold Junction store and at least four shots that went inward toward the Gold Junction store. (R-896). The witness further indicated that there was very little likelihood of any significant ricochet in the shots that were fired by the security guard. (R-903).

Mr. Styers also indicated that he examined all projectiles and projectile fragments which came into the possession of the Sheriff's Office and that at least four came from the security guard's gun, and all other projectiles and projectile fragments came from one other gun. In other words, according to Mr. Styers, there was no evidence of more than two guns being involved in the shooting incident; one of those being the security guard's gun. (R-908). He also indicated that a person standing within the Gold Junction near the southeast corner of that store could have produced every single outgoing shot. (R-910). On re-cross-

examination, Mr. Styers indicated that if an individual were hit by a number of pellets, rather than just one, it would be indicative of that person being hit by direct fire rather than a ricochet. (R-912-3).

The next state witness was Jeannie Martin. She testified that she was the owner of the Farmer's Market and in charge of operations. (R-914-5). She was called to the Farmer's Market in regard to the shooting incident on June 18th at approximately 2:50 AM. She testified that one of the doors to the Farmer's Market was broken out when she saw it that morning. (R-918).

During the recess, one of the jurors saw Appellant in custody being taken by the sheriff's deputies into the holding cell at the courthouse. Counsel for Appellant called it to the trial court's attention and moved to strike that juror from the panel. That motion was denied. Counsel for Appellant thereupon moved for a mistrial, which was also denied. (R-924-5). Ms. Martin testified that she did not give anyone permission to enter the Farmer's Market after the closing hours on June 17, 1988 or during the early morning hours of June 18, 1988 prior to 3:10 AM. (R-960).

The next witness called by the state was Deputy Sheriff Jim Warring, a latent fingerprint examiner for the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office. Deputy Warring testified that a partial right palm print found on a five gallon Coke canister which was found at the Farmer's Market at the time police responded to the indications of a break-in on the date of the shooting matched the right palm print of Appellant. He also testified that the fingerprints found

on state's exhibit 9 matched the fingerprints of Appellant. (R-971-88). On cross-examination, Mr. Warring stated that Appellant's fingerprints were not found in the jewelry store or anywhere else in the Farmer's Market except up on the roof by a window and down on the floor on the Coke canister. (R-988-9). The witness also testified that fingerprints belonging to the co-defendant, Tony Escalera, were found on a window frame which was the point of entry of the break-in at the Farmer's Market. (R-989).

The next state witness was Ted Lot, the owner of the Gold Junction jewelry store at the Farmer's Market. He testified that his store was burglarized in the early morning hours of June 18, 1988 and that the store was ransacked, especially at one end. (R-992-4). He further stated that approximately \$975.00 worth of jewelry was stolen during the burglary. (R-1000-1).

Dorothy Gilbert testified next. She was an employee at the Farmer's Market Gold Junction on June 17 and 18, 1988. She testified that she conducted an inventory to determine what items were missing in the burglary and found a number of charms and chains were missing as well as one watch. She also testified that there were holes in the curtain at the store which had not been there the night before when she left. (R-1002-5).

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