FILED
SID J. WHITE

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

NOV 16 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
Chief Deputy Clerk
Chief Deputy Clerk

MIGUEL HERNANDEZ,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

## ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

SARA D. BAGGETT ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 0857238

CASE NO. 75,127

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

##

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

Appellant also claims error, however, in the trial court's denial of his request for a Richardson hearing. Richardson hearing is required, the trial court must first find that a discovery violation has occurred. See Grant v. State, 474 So.2d 259, 261 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985), rev. denied, 484 So.2d 8 (Fla. 1986) ("Because the State did not violate 3.220(a)(1)(i), the trial court had no duty to conduct a Richardson inquiry."). See also Derrick v. State, 581 So.2d 31 (Fla. 1991). Here, since no violation occurred, no hearing was required. Before the State called the witness in question, it informed the trial court and defense counsel of its intentions

This witness' testimony was presented as a taped interview conducted by defense counsel. The State was not present at the interview and did not have the opportunity to cross-examine the witness regarding his knowledge of Appellant's prior convictions and violation of probation.

and explained the evidentiary connection of the witness. Defense counsel was given an opportunity to articulate any prejudice Appellant may incur because of the witness' testimony, but provided none. After all, Appellant surely told his attorney of his prior probationary status and his violation. "Thus, even though the judge did not incant the words, 'I find no discovery violation requiring further inquiry,' that is unavoidably the substance of what he did conclude." Heath v. State, 594 So.2d 332, 333 (Fla. 4th DCA 1992). This was not error.

#### ISSUE XXII

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT CONSIDERED IMPROPER EVIDENCE FOR SENTENCING (Restated).

#### A. Evidence of Other Crimes

At Appellant's final sentencing hearing on November 3, 1989, the State called Deputy Alfred Musko as a witness, without objection by Appellant. (T 2194). Twice during the witness' testimony, Appellant raised a hearsay objection, both of which were overruled, and a standing objection on that ground was noted by the trial court. (T 2195-96). Later, after Appellant stipulated that "a package was received [by him during a visit from a member of the defense team] and marijuana was found in that package" (T 2196-97), the State was allowed to elicit, over Appellant's relevancy objection, 14 that the visitor requested a visit with Appellant, that the person represented to the guards that a manila envelope contained legal papers so it would not be

 $<sup>^{14}</sup>$  No ruling was ever rendered on Appellant's relevancy objection.

searched, and that marijuana was found secreted in cigarette packs stuffed in Appellant's socks upon exiting the conference room with the member of the defense team. (T 2197-2200). At no time did Appellant argue that this testimony was "evidence of other crimes," which were not "specifically included within the statutorily enumerated aggravating factors," as he does in this appeal. Brief of Appellant at 81. Thus, because he did not make this argument below, he is precluded from making it for the first time on appeal. Tillman v. State, 471 So.2d 32, 35 (Fla. 1985); Steinhorst v. State, 412 So.2d 332, 338 (Fla. 1982).

Appellant did not object when the State called the witness to testify and then stipulated that Appellant obtained a package from a member of the defense team which contained marijuana. He should not now be heard to complain about the admission of the evidence. Regardless, there is no evidence in the record to suggest that the trial court placed any weight on this evidence, which was presented just prior to the trial court's imposition of sentence. Even if it were error to admit such testimony, it was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt in light of the fact that their were four aggravating factors and no mitigating factors.

See State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986). See also Payne v. Tennessee, 501 U.S. \_\_\_\_, 115 L.Ed.2d 720 (1991) (finding no per se violation).

# B. Victim-impact Statement in PSI

Appellant also claims that the trial court improperly "considered evidence from a pre-sentence investigation, including a victim-impact statement." Brief of Appellant at 81.

Initially, the State would note that Appellant "made no objections to consideration of the statements." Scull v. State, 533 So.2d 1137, 1142-43 (Fla. 1988), rev'd on other grounds, 569 So.2d 1251 (Fla. (1990). Thus, he has failed to preserve this issue for review.

Even if he had preserved the issue, however, it meritless. As this Court stated in Scull, "when a judge merely sees a victim impact statement contained in a presentence investigation report, but does not consider the statements for purposes of sentencing, no error has been committed." 1143. In its order, the trial court expressly stated that it had considered the testimony and evidence at the trial, the testimony and evidence at Phase II, "relevant portions of the pre-sentence investigation," and all matters at the sentencing hearing. 2527) (emphasis added). This evidence, which includes weighty aggravation, no mitigation, and the recommendation of death by the jury which heard no victim impact evidence, shows beyond a reasonable doubt that a sentence of death would have been imposed without the victim impact evidence. Parker v. Dugger, 537 So.2d Thus, this Court should affirm Appellant's 969 (Fla. 1988). sentence of death.

## ISSUE XXIII

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION ALLOWING STATE THE TO INTRODUCE TESTIMONY OF THE FORMER PROSECUTOR REGARDING HIS MOTIVATION FOR OFFERING PLEA Α TO APPELLANT'S CODEFENDANT, TONY **ESCALERA** (Restated).

After Appellant rested his case during the penalty phase and asked the trial court to reinstruct the jury regarding the nature of Tony Escalera's plea, the State indicated that it was going to call Mike Celeste, the initial prosecutor on Appellant's case, and the prosecutor who negotiated the plea agreement with Escalera. (T 2016). Appellant objected and stated, "What happened in another case is irrelevant and he will be giving opinion testimony." (T 2016). The trial court made no express ruling, but implicitly overruled the objection. (T 2016-17).

Thereafter, Mr. Celeste testified that plea negotiation is a common practice and that a majority of cases result in a plea. (T 2018-19). When the State asked Mr. Celeste why he had made a plea offer of 40 years for second-degree murder to Escalera, Appellant objected to "opinion testimony," but the trial court made no ruling. As a result, Mr. Celeste explained that, as a result of an extensive investigation and his personal contact with Escalera, he believed that Escalera was a follower, not a leader, that he idolized Appellant, and that he did not have a history of violence as did Appellant. As a result, Mr. Celeste believed that Escalera was not capable of being the gunman in this case. (2019-20). At that point, Appellant objected to that opinion, moved to strike, and requested a curative instruction.

The trial court sustained the objection, struck the testimony, and instructed the jury to disregard it. Defense counsel then stated, "We also have another motion[;] we ask to approach the bench later for that." (T 2021). It was not until after the State's entire rebuttal, three witnesses later, that Appellant moved for mistrial. (T 2054). Regardless, during cross-examination, defense counsel asked Mr. Celeste whether he knew who the triggerman was, and Mr. Celeste responded that he did not. He disagreed with defense counsel that the evidence suggested that Escalera was the triggerman, and maintained that forty years was an appropriate sentence for Escalera, even with his juvenile record. (T 2021-27).

In this appeal, Appellant concedes that the law "permits an explanation by the prosecution for the disparate treatment of a co-defendant once the evidence of that treatment is introduced by the defendant," but contends that such evidence is not properly presented through lay witness opinion like that of Mr. Celeste. Brief of Appellant at 82. Initially, the State submits that Appellant has failed to preserve this issue for appeal because he failed to present sufficiently specific objections or to secure rulings on his objections. Such rulings are imperative, for they constitute the basis for review. See Richardson v. State, 437 So.2d 1091, 1094 (Fla. 1983) ("[A]ppellant did not pursue his motion to strike even though the judge did not rule on the motion. Under these circumstances, appellant has not preserved the issue for appeal."); State v. Barber, 301 So.2d 7, 9 (Fla. 1974); McPhee v. State, 254 So.2d 406, 410 (Fla. 1st DCA 1971).

Moreover, with respect to Appellant's motion for mistrial, the State submits that Appellant failed to make the motion sufficiently contemporaneous with the alleged error. Celeste opined that he did not believe Escalera triggerman, Appellant objected, moved to strike, and requested a curative instruction. The trial court sustained the objection, struck the testimony, and instructed the jury. Before moving for a mistrial, however, at the end of the State's rebuttal, Appellant questioned Mr. Celeste further regarding this testimony and again elicited Mr. Celeste's opinion that Escalera was not Thus, Appellant failed to move for a mistrial contemporaneously and then invited further error by raising the issue again on cross-examination. Under these circumstances, Appellant has waived his objections to this testimony.

Even if Appellant had preserved his initial objections based on allegedly improper opinion testimony, his argument that Mike Celeste could not relate the circumstances and rationale behind the plea is enigmatic, especially in light of Appellant's concession that such evidence is relevant and admissible. As the principal prosecutor on Escalera's case, and the prosecutor responsible for negotiating a plea agreement with Escalera, Mike Celeste was the only person capable of explaining the circumstances under which the plea was offered and the rationale behind such an offer. Thus, since his testimony fell within the rule of evidence allowing for lay witness opinion testimony, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in implicitly denying Appellant's objections.

#### ISSUE XXIV

WHETHER FLORIDA STATUTE § 921.141 IS CONSTITUTIONAL (Restated).

In this appeal, Appellant claims that Florida's death penalty statute is unconstitutional for the following reasons: 1) jury instructions relating to the penalty phase aggravating factors "assure arbitrariness" because they merely mirror the language of the statute, (2) the jury had "unbounded discretion" in deciding the penalty because "it was not told the definition of the felony aggravators," (3) the jury's vote of 8 to 4, a bare majority, "is so unreliable as to violate due process," (4) this Court does not provide meaningful appellate review because (a) it refuses "to reweigh the aggravating and mitigating evidence," (b) it refuses "to examine first degree murder cases in which life is imposed and distinguish[es] cases based on the jury recommendation alone," (c) it inconsistently judges the appropriateness of a jury override, and (d) "declares error harmless without independent review of the record and has not enforced a requirement of complete trial court findings of mitigating circumstances until Campbell, 571 So.2d 415," and (5) the burden of proof for finding mitigating circumstances ("reasonably convincing") is higher than that required by the United Supreme Court ("reasonable States likelihood"), thereby unconstitutionally restricting consideration of mitigating evidence. Brief of Appellant at 83-86. Even though Appellant filed numerous motions in the trial court challenging the constitutionality of section 921.141, none of the motions below encompass the arguments made in this appeal.

(R 2256-60, 2262-64. 2268-73, 2274-77, 2278-94, 2321-48). Nor did Appellant present these arguments at the hearing on the motions. (T 27-35, 53-54, 154-56). Thus, Appellant has abandoned the arguments made below and has failed to preserve the arguments made here. Tillman v. State, 471 So.2d 32, 35 (Fla. 1985); Steinhorst v. State, 412 So.2d 332, 338 (Fla. 1982).

Even if he had preserved these arguments for review, they are wholly without merit. Challenges for vagueness cannot be sustained against the four aggravating circumstances instructed upon in this case (prior conviction, commission during a burglary, avoid arrest, pecuniary gain) because they contain no terms which require more than common understanding for their definition. Thus, they do not engender the unfettered discretion envisioned by Appellant. See Lewis v. State, 398 So.2d 432, 437 (Fla. 1981).

As for Appellant's second point, the elements of the burglary offense which underlies the commission during a burglary aggravating factor have already been given and found to exist during the guilt phase. Thus, reinstruction during the penalty phase is not necessary. See Issue XXXI, infra.

Regarding Appellant's third point, this Court has already decided that a recommendation of death by a simple majority is constitutionally permissible. <u>Fleming v. State</u>, 374 So.2d 954, 957 (Fla. 1979). <u>See also Schad v. Arizona</u>, 501 U.S. \_\_\_\_, 115 L.Ed.2d 555, 564 (1991). Thus, the jury's 8 to 4 vote in this case is constitutionally permissible.

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